
~ . IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF UTAH

CENTRAL DIVISION

)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) I N D I C T MEN T

)Plaintiff, ) .
) VIOLATION OF U. S. CURRENCY LAW

vs. .)

FEDERAL RESERVE BANK ~ (! Pi -8' ~ - 0 I CJ? W
)

Defendants. )
)

Inasmuch as we have issued indictments and subpoenas which the U.S. Attorney

and the courts would not act upon, we issue this final indictment of the federal

reserv~ and its<)jrincipals. This is not done in anger or as an act of disrespect,

but still disagreeing with the U.S. Attorney and the courts.

The Grand Jury finds that--
The power to print paper money or to issue Dills of credit, was never given

to the Federal government and it is contrary to both the letter and the spirit

of the Constitution for it to do so.
While the power "to coin money, regulat,e the value thereof and of foreign

coin" and the power "to borrow money on the credit of the United States" were I
both delegated to the Congress, the power to print money was never given. A pro-

pOsal was made in the Constitution convention to give Congress this power and jot

was defeated by a vote of nine states against, two for. (See Madison's Notes on

Debates in the Federal Convention for August 16,1787). But the wording of the

Constitution itself denies such a power to Congress. It provides that "No state

shall make :nything but gold and silver coin a tender in payment of debts." This

being so, when the Federal government issues irredeemable paper as a tender in

payment of debts it compels them to violate this prohibition. Inasmuch as the

laws dealing with lawful money are still intact (gold and silver coin) the fed-

" eral reserve, .in ignoring these laws is also violating statutes.
"No state shall. . . pass any law. . . impairing the obligation of contract."

By compelling the states to use irredeemable paper as a tender in payment of

debts, Congress thereby causes the states to impair the obligation of contracts

to the extent of billions of dollars each year. This can be seen by noting the

effect which inflation has upon people. According to the Statistical Abstract

of 1980 there was at the end of 1979 $3,222 Billion of Life Insurance in force.

Assuming an annual inflation rate of just 10\, holders of policies are ~y~rem~r.i~-

ally robbed each year of over $322 Billion. The combined CPI for the pa::;t five

years totaled 48.6\ inflation (1977, 6.5\; 1978, 7.7\; 1979, 11.3\, 1980, 14.4\;

1981,8.7\). Life insurance in force averaged approximately.$3,024 Billion per

year. 48.6\ X $3,024 Billion \- $1,469 Billion, or nearly $1.5 Trillion impair-
ment of insuran~~ in for.=e. Holders of the national debt would be robbed of over

$100 Billion at just 10\ inflation annually. This is not to mention the loss
being suffered by old age pensions, retired people, people with bonds, savings ac-

l counts, and holders of mortgages, etc. The states, by' ignoring their constitutional
L - charlj\'? are guilty of participating with the federal reserve in jJnpairing contracts,
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violating citizens civil and property rights, all. without due process of law for

the citizens. Why then do governments leave good money and go to bad? One reason

is that it enables them to effectively eliminate (assuming a 10\ inflation rate)

10% of their obligations annually and to payoff long term bonds with severly

devalued dollars, except as offset by excessive interest.

The purpose of the Constitution provisions is to protect the right of private

property including contract rights, not to impair them.

The Grand Jury finds that--

The founding fathers interpreted the Constitut.~on as requiring the use of

gold and silver coin as the only legal tender which could be used in the nation.

It is a fact that for the first seventy ye~rs of its existence, the ~ation

was on a silver and gold standard. This is all the evidence one would ever need

as to the type of mone~ary system intended for this nation by those \iho drafted

and adopted the United States Con~titution. It was not until the great crisis

brought on by the Civil War that the North, in an attempt to provide additional

financing, for the first time issued "bills of Credit" and made them a tender in

payment of debts.

An irredeemable currency is directly contra~y to the spirit of the Constit-

ution which was designed to protect contract rights. There is a specific provi-

sion contained in the .Constitution which says: "No state shall. . . pass any

law. . . impairing the obligation of contract." This same law should apply to

the federal government. By printing worthless currency and compelling state

c~urts to use it as a legal tender in payment of debts, it forces them to disobey

the prohibition. Recqgnizing the danger of allowing state governments to pass

laws destroying' contract rights and also desiring that states should act honor-

able, this prohibition was adopted. Morally and legally, it is equally applicable

to the Federal.

If this matter was so plain to those who drafted the Constitution, how did

it happen that we use neither gold nor silver today but only an irredeemable paper

and a debased coinage? The answer is found in the fact that when a nation gets

into serious trouble, those in government tend to ignore the restraints of the

Constitution, and the people, under the stress of the times tend to permit it.

Thus it happened that in the desperate days of the Civil War, a sorely beset

Congress first authorized the issue of paper money by the Federal Government.

The term "greenbacks" was used to describe this issue and they were made a legal

tender in payment of debts both public and private. Of course the constitution-
ality of this act was tested in the United states Sup~'eme Court wnich held in a. .

five to three decision that paper money was unconstitutional.

This victory for sound money did not last long however because shortly there-

after when the personnel of the Court had been changed by the addition of two new

members, another case involving essentially the same issue was brought before it,

and this time in a five to four majority reversed the prior decision. It is a

1 matter for reflection that the decision of a single Court Justice can affect theI
I destiny of an entire nation.

, Eventually the issue of greenbacks was redeemed in gold and silver coin as
- \ was always intended~ and the nation returned to a hard money system which continued
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same time. The great majority of us cannot afford to invest in the precious me-
'.tals. When we have a claim for money we want to turn that claim into food, clo-

thing, services, etc. as soon as possible without going through the cumbersome
and useless process of converting it into gold and silver first.

': But the scarcity argument is seen in its most ridiculous light when it is
:L remembered that it is this very scarcity which makes it possible to use gold and
.]I

silver as an unchanging standard of value. If they were to become as plentiful

as, say paper, they could not possibly retain their value in the eyes of the peo-

ple. It is the very fact that they are scarce together with the fact that they

have intrinsic worth, which preserves their value from generation to generation.

On the other hand, paper has none of the characteristics needed as a stand-

ard of value because it has no intrinsic worth. This is not to say we should not

use paper as a medium of exchange to represent a claim for money. Paper is cer-

tainly convenient to use for transferring claims to gold and silver and there is

nothing against using it for this purpose. Common sense dictates that we do so.

There is no danger in using paper as a claim or an evidence of ownership of some-

thing of value. The great danger--and indeed the terrible harm--comes from making

it irredeemable--in asserting that the paper has value rather than that it repre-

sents a claim for some commodity which has value.

The Grand Jury Finds that--

Irredeemable paper money is the fundamental cause of inflation, that th,~s

irredeemability is a violation of statutes dealing with lawful money and the money

o.f account of the U.S. The federal reserve itself continued to publicly show

its recognition of these statutes into the late 1960's by printin~ on its notes

we used as money that they were redeemable in lawful money. St~tut~~ cillo1 L1iu

Constitution did not change, only their printing the recognition of their still

existing obligation to redeem in lawful money changed.

COUNT I
The Grand Jury Charges that:

By issuing and circulating irredeemable paper as legal tender in payment of

debts the Federal Reserve Bank in this district, in concert with other Federal

, Reserve Banks under authority of a prior congress is compelling the states to
i violate that provision of the Constitution which forbids them to make "anything

.' but gold and silver coin a tender in payment of debts."

COUNT II

The Grand Jury Charges that:

By issuing and circulating irredeemable paper money as a legal tender in

I payment of debts, the Federal Reserve Bank in this district, in concert with other
! Federal Reserve Banks is causing the states to violate that provision of the Con-

stitution which forbids them to impair the obligations of contract.

i \,
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COUNT III , .
The Grand Jury Charges that:

By issuing and circulating irredeemable paper as legal tender in payment of

debts. the Federal Reserve Bank in this district, in concert with other Federal

Reserve Banks under authority of a prior congress is using something other than

~ the Constitution allows.

COUNT IV
The. Grand Jury Charges that:

In 1980 the FRS in this district in concert with agents and employees of other

Federal Reserve banks did issue and put in circulation Federal Reserve notes in

an amount in excess of $1,025,547,000 from the branch of the Federal Reserve Bank
of San Francisco, some of which were also issued and put in circulation through

the Salt Lake City Branch; and provisions of 12 U.S.C. 411 require that the said
notes shall be obligations of the United States and shall be receivable by all

national banks and membe~ banks and Federal Reserve banks and for all taxes, cus-

toms, and other Public dues, and they shall be redeemed in lawful money of the

United States, in the city of Washington, District of Columbia, or at any Federal

Reserve Bank, and as defined at 12 U.S.C. 152, the terms "lawful money" and "lawful

money of the United States" shall be construed to mean gold or silver coin of the

United States, and 18 U.S.C. 334, crimes and criminal procedure requires that who-

ever, being a Federal Reserve Agent, or an agent or employee of such Federal Re-

serve Agent, or of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, issues

o.r puts in circulation any Federal Reserve notes, without complying with or in

violation of the provi$ions of law regulating the issuance and circulation of Fed-

eral Reserve notes shall be fined not more than $5,000 or impri~ion~ ~~t mn~A

than five years or both, an(~ the defendants being m~ers of the Board of Gover-

nors of the Federal Reserve System, or agents or ~n~loyees thereof, did issue and

put. in circulation Federal Reserve notes without c.:':.mplying ", ;th and in violation
of the provisions of 12 U.S.C. 411, and that such Federal Reserve notes are not

. obligations of the United States as required at 12 U.S.C. 411 and as defined at
,
i 18 U.S.C. 8, a~j that such notes were issued and were not redeemed, a~e not now
;: being redeemed nor can they be redeemed in lawful money of the United States which
~. j.s defined in 12 U.S .C. 152 as gold and silver coin of the united States as re-
,
\ quired in 12 U.S.C. 411, and therefore the said notes were issued and put in cir-

i culation in violation of 18 U.S.C. 334.

! (a). Gold and. Price,s, George F. Warren & Frank A. Person, John Wesley & Sons (1935).
i Page 138.

(b) Statistical Abstract of the U.S. (1937). Pages 163 & 200.
i
: (c) Board of Governors, Directors of Federal Reserve & Members of the Open Market
i Committee.
I
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I u.s. ATTORNEY-
\


